LA M B EEMEE  Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(B IR I O 7 A5 220 5 A R T 8)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

1 AR REEREHHEBBB 1| Company profile and principal activities

KAAER PRI A R A F (TALF ) Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Company Limited (the “Company”)
JER 1993 4F 6 A 8 H7E i AR ICAIE was established on 8 June 1993 in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) as a
(TehE ) REM AL IR IR T o A joint stock limited company. The activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
DN BB A B (TAEE[E |) B IRF A 48 (the “Group”) include sewage water processing, construction of sewage water
B SET LA 15 7K e FE R 7K B R processing plants, production of recycled water, construction materials and operation
SEHE o K SRR b A E S AE B R of road toll stations.
B
PR R AR I T B s A A it The operation mode of the Group’s principal activities is described below:
(a) THRBBER (a)  Sewage water processing
57K P C ok : Sewage Water Processing Agreements:
AR IEAH BE e ([ Tk R B2 T Pursuant to relevant agreements (“Sewage Water Processing Agreements”),
) ) AEEEBLLT = RKI5K the Group provides sewage water processing services via three plants as
i HR R 5 K B AR - follows:
bAT ARB 0 %K
Plant Location Contract Date Customer
KEAAET 2000 4 10 A 10 H BEk 2w
Ji Zhuang Zi, Tianjin 10 October 2000 TSC
PNEY 2000 4 10 A 10 H Bk 2 )
Dong Jiao, Tianjin 10 October 2000 TSC
B 2004 459 J1 16 [ BRI
Guizhou 16 September 2004 GCAB
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(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

1 Company profile and principal activities (Continued)

(a)

Sewage water processing (Continued)

Sewage Water Processing Agreements: (Continued)
The principal terms of the pricing formula as set out in the relevant

agreements are briefly summarised below:

TSC (Tianjin Sewage Company is a state owned enterprise under

supervisory control of Tianjin Municipal Engineering Bureau (“TMEB”)):

The Group will have full recovery of actual operating costs, including
depreciation and amortisation of fixed assets, excluding interest expenses

and foreign exchange gains or losses and at minimum:

()  earna return of 15% per annum of the average balances of the
monthly net book value of property, plant and equipment (as defined

in the agreement) of the plants; and

(i)  incentive pricing adjustments will be made for cost saving and/or
when actual processing volume exceeds the minimum processing

volume as stipulated in the agreement.

GCAB (“Guiyang City Administration Bureau”):

Initial sewage water processing price is Rmb0.84 per cubic meter for the

first two years, thereafter

(i) the price after two years will be determined by a pricing formula
which will effectively allow full recovery of the actual business costs,
including operating cost, depreciation, income tax and a return of

8% on budgeted net assets of the plant; and

(i) the price might be revised after considering the factors of renovation
of equipment, additional investment, power and energy and labour

fOf ce etc.
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LA M B EEMEE  Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(B IR I O 7 A5 220 5 A R T 8)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

1 AR REEREHHBEBBEN 1| Company profile and principal activities (Continued)

(78)

(b) TG HEBIRR A i R B (b)  Construction of sewage water processing plants
AR ik Construction Agreement:
HRIFAN AR 2001 £ 9 H 24 HH# Pursuant to an agreement (“Construction Agreement”) between the
PRk A R BTH Q57K B HE (B ) Company and TSC on 24 September 2001, the Company is to provide
TEg TRENCE Whak) ([ 2SOl h construction services to TSC in respect of three plants detailed below:

k) o ALTEEPEK A AR
B LA = A8 K B B A AR -

H AR R 157 /T Ev:y At
Project Xian Yang Lu Ji Zhuang Zi Bei Cang Total
dEtae ) Gk /X)
Designed cagacity (M?*/day) 450,000 280,000 100,000 830,000
HahE LAY 2006 44 2006 44 2006 44
Estimated date of completion Early 2006 Early 2006 Early 2006
ARWHET

‘ Rmb’ million

A

Actual construction cost:
—#E 2004 F 12131 H

- Up to 31 December 2004 641 723 184 1,548
— AR

- Additions during the year 200 121 153 474
—#% 2005 F 12 131

- Up to 31 December 2005 841 844 337 2,022

TRA R ERLA

Budgeted cost:
—&ME5T (GEREGE))
-As revised (note (ii)) 958 1,027 408 2,393
— A2l GERG))
-As previously reported (note (i)) 1,199 1,055 366 2,620
ok mlih (GERGiD)
Owned by TSC (note (iii)) 394 100 211 705
AATIE
Owned by the Company 805 955 155 1,915

AN A C R A SR (iEFEG))
Construction fees recognised by the Company (note (3)):
— #2004 4 12 J1 31 H

- Up to 31 December 2004 302 209 133 644
— ARAEHHER

- For the year ended 31 December 2005 104 39 110 253
— % 20057 12 1 31 H

- Up to 31 December 2005 406 248 243 897
— KRR AR

- Total balance not due 61 60 51 172
BEHAESHE

Total expected 467 308 294 1,069
— WA (EREG)

- As previously reported (note (i) 589 317 264 1,170

E LR A -

% of completion of construction:
—J% 2004 4 12 J1 31 H

- As at 31 December 2004 53% 69% 50%
—Ji% 2005 4F 12 J1 31 H
- As at 31 December 2005 88% 82% 83%
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(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

Company profile and principal activities (Continued)

Construction of sewage water processing plants (Continued)

The principal terms of the Construction Agreement are summarised below:

a fee will be paid by TSC during the period of constructing the plants
as a reward to remunerate the Company for accepting the
responsibility to construct the sewage water processing plants. The
aggregate construction fees payable to the Company for the
construction of these three plants amount to approximately

Rmb1,170 million, currently revised to Rmb1,069 million;

fee is payable by TSC in advance on a monthly basis according to the
percentage of completion of the respective construction projects
estimated by the Company. The percentage of completion of each
project will be adjusted on a quarterly basis according to the

certifications issued by qualified independent surveyors or engineers;

the Company is responsible for the funding of the construction cost

of these plants, and

upon commencement of operations of the three sewage water
processing plants, the rights and obligations between the Company
and TSC will follow the terms as specified in the Sewage Water

Processing Agreement as applicable to the Tianjin plants (Notel (a)).
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(B IR I O 7 A5 220 5 A R T 8)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)
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Company profile and principal activities (Continued)

Construction of sewage water processing plants (Continued)

Transfer Agreement:

Also, on 24 September 2001, respective agreements (“Transfer Agreements”)
were signed whereby, the Company would acquire the above three plants
from TSC and would be responsible for the construction and management
of the remaining uncompleted portion of the plants. The transfers were

deemed completed on 30 October 2002.

A TE
AN E] R 2003 4F 8 7 25 H ELPEK
NTFIERT Ty A e (A1

Co-operative Agreement:
On 25 August 2003, the Company entered into an agreement with TSC

(“Co-operative Agreement”) whereby:

ek l) > HRAERZ A 1R K -

o ANEIAEIG KR
TAEVE H B E i

o BokAFAEMAEE A
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the Company would be responsible for the overall execution of the

construction of the three plants;

TSC would be responsible for making use of the original loans from
two foreign banks (the “Foreign Loans”) to fund certain property,

plant and equipment used in these plants;

TSC would sell to the Company these Foreign Loans funded property,
plant and equipment after their installation and the issuance of
verification reports, at their carrying value (note(iii)). The
construction fee charged by the Company pursuant to the above
mentioned Construction Agreement, would include the cost of these

property, plant and equipment as the base; and

the Company would be responsible for the repairs and maintenance
of these property, plant and equipment during the construction

period.
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(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

1 Company profile and principal activities (Continued)

(b)  Construction of sewage water processing plants (Continued)

Notes:

() Costs and fees as previously reported are only estimated numbers set
out in the contracts which will be adjusted based on actual situation

upon completion.

(i) In2005, the Company revised the budgeted construction cost of the
above three plants based on a valuation report issued by an
independent valuer. Accordingly, the budgeted construction fees had
been revised using the same return rate to reflect the change of cost.
The revised construction costs and fees are pending approval from

the Company’s shareholders and confirmation from TSC.

(iii)  Assets owned by TSC are those funded by certain foreign loans in

the preceding paragraphs.
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(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)
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LA M B EEMEE  Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Company profile and principal activities (Continued)

(©

Road toll stations

Prior to 2003, the Company owned the right, to set up toll stations at the
junctions between the Tianjin city roads and expressways leading to the
city, and to collect tolls generally from non-Tianjin registered motor vehicles
(other than those exempted by law) passing these toll stations. The right

was for a term expiring on 28 February 2029.

During 2003, following the reform of the public transportation network,
the Tianjin Municipal Government relocated certain toll stations, including
those of the Company, to the boundary of the interstate highways
surrounding Tianjin. The collection of tolls from non-Tianjin registered
vehicles was then centralised at a Tianjin Toll Collection Office (“Toll
Collection Office”) set up by TMEB. As a result, the Company’s toll stations
were demolished since 31 May 2003 and TMEB agreed to compensate the
Company principally as follows:

. a one-off cash compensation by TMEB equivalent to the net book
value of the assets of the demolished toll stations as at 30 June 2003

of about Rmb33 million;

. compensation for loss in revenue, during the period from 31 May
2003 to the date of completion of construction of the new toll stations
(mentioned in following paragraph), equivalent to the revenue
received in the same period of last year of about Rmb5.5 million net

of expenses; and
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(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

1 Company profile and principal activities (Continued)

() Road toll stations (Continued)

Company was granted the collection right of six new toll stations
from 1 July 2003 to 28 February 2029. However, the Company is
not allowed to transfer, lease or pledge the right to other parties

without TMEB’s consent.

In tandem, the Company entered into an agreement (“Toll Collection

Agreement”) with Toll Collection Office on 24 July 2003 with following

principal terms:

the Company engaged the Toll Collection Office to collect the tolls
at the six new toll stations on its behalf for which it will pay a

management fee;

the Company is to receive the actual tolls collected from the six new
stations for the corresponding period/year, subject to minimum toll
fee for each period/year based on the forecast traffic flow and tolls
for the corresponding period/year as stipulated in a traffic flow and
tolls forecast report for the six new toll stations issued by a professional

consulting company in July 2003; and

any shortfall to the Company between actual and the agreed
minimum will be compensated to the Company by the Toll Collection

Office.
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(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)
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LA M B EEMEE  Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated

financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied

to all the years presented, other than discussed in this section.

2.1

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”).
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by available-for-sale financial assets, financial

assets and financial liabilities at fair value through income statement.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Company’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated

financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

(@) Going concern
As at 31 December 2005, the Group and the Company’s current
liabilities exceeded their current assets by approximately Rmb166

million and Rmb306 million respectively.

Despite the foregoing, these financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis, because the Directors of the Company
believe that the undrawn bank facilities together with the continuing
support of the Group’s bankers are sufficient for the Group and the

Company to meet their respective liabilities as and when they fall

due.
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(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.1  Basis of preparation (Continued)
(b)  Adoption of new/revised accounting standards

The Group adopted the following new/revised standards and
interpretation of HKFRS which are relevant to its operations. The
2004 comparatives have been restated as required, in accordance with
the relevant requirements.

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

HKAS 2 Inventories

HKAS 7 Cash Flow Statements

HKAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

HKAS 10 Events after the Balance Sheet Date

HKAS 11 Construction Contracts

HKAS 12 Income Taxes

HKAS 14 Segment reporting

HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment

HKAS 17 Leases

HKAS 18 Revenue

HKAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

HKAS 23 Borrowing Costs

HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures

HKAS 26 Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans

HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Disclosures and Presentation

HKAS 33 Earnings per Share

HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets

HKAS 38 Intangible Assets

HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

HKAS 40 Investment Property (Note 2.7)

HKEFRS 3 Business Combinations
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(B IR I O 7 A5 220 5 A R T 8)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

2 EBEEFHECR (8 2.

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

21 HBIEHE () 2.1  Basis of preparation (Continued)
(b)  FRANFF AT, HE A5 7T 3 ) (b)  Adoption of newlrevised accounting standards (Continued)
(#5)

PRAHRT /T m ik ast
HEHI2, 7,8, 10,11, 12, 14, 16,
18, 21, 23, 24, 26, 27, 33, 36,

The adoption of new / revised HKASs 2, 7, 8, 10, 11, 12, 14, 16, 18,
21, 23, 24, 26, 27, 33, 36, 38 and HKFRS 3 did not result in

substantial changes to the Group’s accounting policies. In summary:

38 DL R A s I HE B 3 3 4
SR AR [ A IR B
D) o TS
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ARG RERTE
BIR - CHRERES] 2004
2 R -

HKASs 2,7, 8,10, 11, 12, 14, 16, 18, 21, 23, 26, 27, 33, 36,
38 and HKFRS 3 had no material effect on the Group’s

policies.

HKAS 24 has affected the identification of related parties and

some other related-party disclosures.

HKAS 1 Presentation of financial statements:

HKAS 1 has affected the presentation of minority interests
and other disclosures. Minority interests have been presented
in the consolidated balance sheet within equity, separately from
the parent sharcholders™ equity. Minority interests in the
income statement of the Group have also been separately
disclosed. The comparatives as at 31 December 2004 have

been restated as appropriate.
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(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.1  Basis of preparation (Continued)

)

Adoption of new/revised accounting standards (Continued)

HKAS 17 Leases:

Adoption of revised HKAS 17 has resulted in a change in the
accounting policy relating to land use rights now reclassified as
operating leases. In prior years, land use rights were accounted for at
cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment.

The 2004 comparatives have been amended as appropriate.

The retrospective application of HKAS 17 has resulted in a
reclassification of unamortized lease premium for land from property,
plant and equipment to land use right, amounting to Rmb596 million
and Rmb592 million for the Group and the Company respectively
(2004: Rmb579 million and Rmb575 million). There was no impact

on the income statement.
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LA M B EEMEE  Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.1  Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)  Adoption of newlrevised accounting standards (Continued)

HKAS 32 Financial instruments-disclosure and presentation and HKAS

39 Financial instruments-recognition and measurement:

HKAS 32 and HKAS 39 establish principles for disclosure,

presentation, recognition and measurement of financial instruments.

Adoption of HKAS 32 has resulted in change in accounting
policy for disclosure of financial instruments. HKAS 32
requires an issuer of a compound financial instrument (that
contains both financial liability and equity components) to
separate the compound financial instrument into its liability
and equity components on its initial recognition and to
account for these components separately. In subsequent
periods, the liability component is carried at amortized cost

using the effective interest method.

Because HKAS 32 requires retrospective application,

comparative figures have been restated.
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(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.1  Basis of preparation (Continued)

)

(i)

Adoption of new/revised accounting standards (Continued)

In accordance with provisions of HKAS 39, the Group’s other unlisted
investments, included under non-current assets, are classified as equity
securities. Unlisted equity securities which are available for sale are
carried at fair value and changes in fair values are dealt with as
movements in the investment revaluation reserve, if any. It has also
resulted in the recognition of derivative financial instruments at fair

value.

HKAS 39 requires prospective application therefore the 2004

comparatives have not been restated.

The principal impact of HKAS 32 and HKAS 39 on the Group is in
relation to convertible bonds issued by the Company. Previously,
convertible loan notes were classified as liabilities on the balance sheet.
The effect of adopting HKAS 32 and HKAS 39 in respect of the
Company’s convertible notes is set out in the consolidated statement

of changes in equity.
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LA M B EEMEE  Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.1  Basis of preparation (Continued)
(c)  Standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards that
are not yet effective
Following are the new standards, amendments and interpretations
to existing standards for accounting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2006 or later periods which are relevant to the Group but

the Group has not early adopted:

Effective from 1 January 2006:

HKAS 19 (Amendment) Employee benefits

HKAS 39 Cash flow hedge accounting of forecast Intragroup transactions;
(Amendment) The fair value option

HKAS 39 and Financial guarantee contracts
HKEFRS 4 207
(Amendment)

HKFRS-Int 4 Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease

Effective from 1 January 2007:

HKFRS 7 and Financial instruments: disclosures, and a complementary
Amendment to Amendment to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements-
HKAS 1 Capital disclosures

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the impact of these new standards,
interpretations and amendments but is not yet in a position to state whether they would

have a significant impact on its results of operations and financial position.
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(B IR I W 7 A6 220 2 A R T 8)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.2

Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company

and its subsidiaries made up to 31 December.

Subsidiaries are those entities in which the Group controls the composition
of the board of Directors, controls more than half the voting power or holds

more than half of the issued share capital.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the period are
included in the consolidated income statement from the effective date of

acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

All significant intercompany transactions and balances within the Group

are eliminated on consolidation.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition
of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the
fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred
or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the
acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any minority
interest. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group's

share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
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LA M B EEMEE  Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.2

2.3

24

Consolidation (Continued)

In the Company’s balance sheet, investments in subsidiaries are stated at
cost less provision for impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends received and

receivable.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside shareholders in the

operating results and net assets of subsidiaries.

Segment reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in providing
products or services that are subject to risks and returns that are different
from those of other business segments. A geographical segment is engaged
in providing products or services within a particular economic environment
that are subject to risks and returns that are different from those of segments

operating in other economic environments.

Translation of foreign currencies

(@) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“Rmb”), which is the Company’s functional and presentation

currency and also that of its principal subsidiaries.

(b)  Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in

foreign currencies are recognized in the income statement.
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(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.5

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation/amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation of the road in relation to the tolls business is calculated to
write off their cost, less accumulated impairment losses, if any, on a units-
of-usage basis whereby the depreciation is provided based on the share of
projected traffic volume for a particular period over the projected total traffic
volume throughout the period of 30 years for which the right to operate the

toll station is granted.

Depreciation of leasehold buildings and structures is calculated to write-off
their cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any, on a straight-line basis
over the unexpired periods of the leases, the unexpired periods of the rights
to operate the road toll stations or their expected useful lives, whichever is

shorter. The periods adopted for depreciation range from 10 to 50 years.

Other property, plant and equipment are depreciated at rates sufficient to
write-off the cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any, of the assets
and less estimated residual value, over their estimated useful lives on a straight-

line basis. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Machinery and equipment
Motor vehicles and others

10-20 years
5-15 years

The assets’ carrying value and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if

appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
. , . . L
amount if the asset’s carrying value is greater than its estimated recoverable

amount.
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LA M B EEMEE  Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.5

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment under
construction or installation and is stated at cost. Cost comprises all direct
costs of acquisition or construction of buildings and plant and machinery
as well as interest expenses on the related funds borrowed during the
construction, installation and testing periods prior to the commissioning
date. Construction in progress is transferred to property, plant and equipment

upon completion.

Major costs incurred in restoring property, plant and equipment to their
normal working condition are charged to the income statement. The expenses
relating to improvements of property, plant and equipment are capitalised

and amortised over their expected useful lives to the Group.

At each balance sheet date, both internal and external sources of information
are considered to assess whether there is any indication that the property,
plant and equipment are impaired. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and where relevant, an
impairment loss is recognised to reduce the asset to its recoverable amount.

Such impairment losses are recognised in the income statement.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment s the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset, and is recognised in the income statement. Any revaluation reserve
balance being attributable to the relevant asset is transferred to retained

earnings and is shown as a movement in reserves.

Repair and maintenance expenses are charged to the income statement as

incurred.
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(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.6

2.7

2.8

Land use rights
Land use rights are recorded at cost and presented net of accumulated

amortization and impairment provision.

Amortisation of land use rights, other than those in relation to tolls business,
is calculated to write-off their cost less accumulated impairment losses, if

any, on a straight line basis over the period of land use rights of 50 years.

Amortisation of land use rights in relation to the tolls business is calculated
to write off their cost, less accumulated impairment losses, if any, on a units-
of-usage basis whereby the amortisation is provided based on the share of
projected traffic volume for a particular period over the projected total traffic
volume throughout the period of 30 years for which the right to operate the

road is granted.

Investment property
Property that is held for long-term rental yields and that is not occupied by

any of the companies within the Group, is classified as investment property.

Investment property is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment. Depreciation of investment property is calculated to write-off
that cost, less accumulated impairment losses, if any, on a straight-line basis

over estimated useful lives of 40 years.

Impairment of assets

An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there

are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
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(B IR I O 7 A5 220 5 A R T 8)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

2 EBEEFHECR (8 2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
29 % 2.9  Investments
H12004 4E1 A 1 HE 2004 4 12 From I January 2004 1o 31 December 2004:
H31H :
B B A RS BUE B 1% The Group classified its investments in securities as investment securities
il o
WS E TR AR RN - These represent long-term investments in unlisted securities which are stated
RSB R AR o (RIS at cost to the Group less provision for impairment losses. The carrying
Z IR LA RS HAEATRRAG - DA amounts of individual investments are reviewed at each balance sheet date
A AFER BT TR to assess whether the fair values have declined below the carrying amounts.
AR B o fBan ksl AR R e - Al When a decline other than temporary has occurred, the carrying amount of
A7 PR3 M TR 2k %2 A such securities will be reduced to the fair value. The amount of the reduction
{8 o Pl B BITE AR I - is recognized as an expense in the income statement.
#12005 4F 1 H 1 H %2005 4 12 From 1 January 2005 to 31 December 2005:
J31H :
AL B LB BN The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories:
213
o R BHEBGK . Loans and receivables
FERO RN Sy A 8 o ] Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
A LA TR TR T 35 or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
A A PR A AR B S o They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than
U TR 4 AE 3 B 12 months after the balance sheet date. These are classified as non-
N HE H d45E H st current assets.
B 12 A > KA
B E E o
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(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.9

2.10

Investments (Continued)

. Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated in this category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current assets unless
management intends to dispose the investment within 12 months

after the balance sheet date.

Regular purchases and sales of investments are recognized on trade-date -
the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the assets.
Investments are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs.
Investments are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from
investments have expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-
sale assets are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are

carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Inventories

Inventories comprise raw materials, finished goods and other consumables.

Raw materials and finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value whilst other consumables are stated at cost less provision for

obsolescence.

Cost is determined on the weighted average basis. The cost of finished goods
comprise raw materials, direct labour and an allocation of all production
overhead expenditures incurred based on normal operating capacity.
Provisions for declines in the values of inventories are determined on item-
by-item basis when the carrying value of the inventories is higher than their
net realisable value. Net realisable value is determined on the basis of

anticipated sales proceeds less estimated distribution and selling expenses.
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LA M B EEMEE  Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.11

2.12

2.13

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognized initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less provision for impairment. Provision is made against accounts receivable
to the extent that they are considered to be doubtful. Accounts receivable

in the balance sheet are stated net of such provision.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with
banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown

within borrowings in current liabilities on the balance sheet.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred. Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or
financial liability, including fees and commissions paid to agents, advisers,
brokers and dealers, levies by regulatory agencies and securities exchanges,
and transfer taxes and duties. Borrowings are subsequently stated at
amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the income statement

over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months

after the balance sheet date.
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(B IR I W 7 A6 220 2 A R T 8)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.14  Deferred income tax

Deferred taxation is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the financial statements. Taxation rates enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date are used to determine deferred

taxation.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can

be utilised.

Deferred taxation is provided on temporary differences arising on investments
in subsidiaries, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary difference

will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities

and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority.

2.15 Employee benefits

. Retirement benefit obligation

The Group contributes on a monthly basis to various defined
contribution retirement benefit plans organized by relevant municipal
and provincial governments in the PRC. The municipal and provincial
governments undertake to assume the retirement benefit obligation
of all existing and future retired employees payable under these plans.

Contributions to these plans are expensed as incurred.
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(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

2 EBEEFHECR (8 2.
2.15 REHEM

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.15 Employee benefits
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. Housing fund

The Group provides housing fund based on certain percentage of
the wages but restrict to the upper limit of the requirement. The
housing fund is paid to government social security organization and
the corresponding costs incurred are expensed and included in the

cost of sales for the year.

2.16 Revenue recognition

Revenue from sewage water processing is recognised when services are

rendered.

Revenue from sewage water processing plants construction services is
calculated based on the percentage of completion during the construction
period of the respective sewage water processing plants. The percentage of
completion is determined with reference to the certification of qualified

independent surveyors or engineers in the PRC.

Toll fee income is recognised on an actual collection from toll users and

compensation from the Toll Collection Office , if any.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised on the transfer of risks and
rewards of ownership, which generally coincides with the time when the

goods are delivered to customers and title has passed.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis, taking into account

the principal amounts outstanding and the interest rates applicable.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.17 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of

that asset.

All other borrowing costs are charged to the income statement in the year in

which they are incurred.

2.18 Operating leases
Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets
remain with the leasing company are accounted for as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases are charged to the income statement

on a straight-line basis over the lease periods.

2.19 Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company’s sharcholders is recognized as a
liability in the Group’s financial statements in the period in which the

dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders.

3 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including the effects
of foreign exchange risk, credit risk and cash flow and fair value interest rate risk,

etc.

(a)  Financial risk factors
(1) Foreign exchange risk
The Group mainly operates in the PRC with most of the transactions
settled in Renminbi and does not have significant exposure to foreign

exchange risk.
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LA M B EEMEE  Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i1)

(1ii)

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to concentrated credit risk because most sales
are to a small number of government bodies. The carrying amount
of the trade receivables represents the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk. Majority of the Group’s trade receivables relates to
provision of services to a related party which is the government backed
body. The Group performs ongoing credit evaluations of the

customers’ financial condition.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest-bearing assets but borrowed
substantial amount of short-term and long-term loans from banks at
fixed and floating rates. Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the

Group to fair value interest-rate risk.

Fair value estimation

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets including cash and

bank, trade, other receivables, deposits and prepayments; and financial

liabilities including trade payables, short-term borrowings, other payables

and accruals, approximate their fair value due to their short maturities.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings approximate their fair

value. The fair value is estimated by discounted cash flows using a discount

rate based upon the borrowing rate in which the Directors of the Company

expect to be available to the Group at the balance sheet date.
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(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

Ciritical accounting estimate and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed

to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting
accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results.
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next year are

discussed below.

(a)  Nature of convertible bonds
The Company tests whether the convertible bonds will be redeemed within
one year. In accordance with the principal terms of bonds detailed in Note
20(d), in particular circumstances, the Company has the option to redeem
and the holder has the option to resell the bonds to the Company. However,

the Company has no intention to redeem the bonds, nor does it want the

holder to resell the bonds back either.

To ensure the bonds are not resold, the Company actively monitors the
stock price and adjusts the conversion price as necessary. It is reasonably
concluded that the bonds will not be resold within the year as long as the
Company is willing to have the bonds outstanding; hence management

estimates that the convertible bonds are non-current in nature.

(b)  Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment
The Group tests annually whether property, plant and equipment have
suffered any impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated
in financial statements Note 2.5. The recoverable amounts of cash-generating
units have been determined based on value-in-use calculations. These

calculations require the use of estimates.
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4. BWEETHARERAB (@)

(c)

il T Al

BATET R L HE R TR
B EM A (EH TR © AR
FURIBTEIRE (7 i > A ETAR
PRAERE RS FE R s DL
ft - B ATEG RS L HE
)22 TECRT 3 11y B B R R AL
ALEER BB SRR AT -

e TEASERN BB

PrBIHR (%) FHH
iR 56 354
B 6.1 124F

JRAR DA B A RS R A B
EFFERTRE 10% > RIDL 4R T
H IR A TR BT
i

AR — AR

LA M B EEMEE  Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 Critical accounting estimate and judgements (Continued)

(9

Valuation of financial instruments

The value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is
determined by using valuation techniques. The Group uses its judgement
to select a variety of methods and make assumptions that are mainly based
on market conditions existing at each balance sheet date. The Group has
used discounted cash flow analysis for various financial assets and liabilities

that were not traded in active markets.

The key assumptions used for estimating the value of financial instruments

are:

Discount rate (%) Maturity
Convertible bonds 5.6 3.5 years
Loans payable 6.1 12 years

If the above discount rate used in management’s computation had been
increased or decreased by 10%, the carrying amount of the above financial

instruments would be approximately lower or higher as follows:

ARWEEL
Rmb’ million

Convertible bonds-liability component 6
Loans payable 6
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(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

Revenue and segment information

An analysis of sales, stated net of business tax, and contributions to operating

profit for the year by principal activities is as follows:

(@  Analysis of the Group’s turnover and other revenue

BE 12 3 31 HIHARE
Year ended 31 December
2005 2004
Turnover (Note 5(b)) 580,495 713,737
Other gains, net
- Rental income from investment property 7,552 —
- Interest income 8,843 6,466
- Others 716 (1,540)
17,111 4,926
Total revenue 597,606 718,663
(b)  Business segment analysis
BE 12 3 31 HIRARE
Year ended 31 December
2005 2004
HET|
Restated
Turnover
Sewage water processing and construction
of sewage plants 504,539 647,517
Tolls (note(i)) 61,699 63,646
Construction materials 1,775 2,574
Wiater recycling 12,482 —
580,495 713,737
Segment result
Sewage water processing and construction
of sewage plants 313,252 475,331
Tolls 44,941 44,057
Construction materials (5,151) (2,908)
Wiater recycling (6,397) —
Unallocated 7,552 —
354,197 516,480
Finance costs (94,216) (50,515)
Profit before income tax 259,981 465,965
Income tax expense (84,345) (154,856)
Profit for the year 175,636 311,109
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LA M B EEMEE  Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Revenue and segment information (Continued)

(b)  Business segment analysis (Continued)

Notes:

(i) The tolls income of Rmb61 million represents the minimum toll fee guaranteed under
the Toll Collection Agreement (Note 1(c)), which includes about Rmb4 million
compensation by the Toll Collection Office.

(i) Pursuant to the PRC tax rules, the Group is subject to PRC business tax levied at 5%

of operating revenue and government surcharges levied at 10% of the amount of business
tax. The business tax and government surcharges related to revenues derived from the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2005 amounting to Rmb31 million (2004:
Rmb41 million) and has been deducted from the operating revenue to arrive at the

turnover of the Group.

Other segment items included in the income statement are as follows:

BE 12 H 31 HIARE
Year ended 31 December
2005 2004
AEH T
Restated
Depreciation:
Sewage water processing and construction
of sewage plants 40,427 33,006
Tolls 3,453 5,632
Construction materials 2,019 705
Water recycling 7,280 —
Unallocated 2,272 —
55,451 39,343
Amortisation:
Sewage water processing and construction
of sewage plants 10,584 14,484
Tolls 4,170 4,109
Construction materials 85 —
Unallocated 602 —
15,441 18,593
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(B IR I W 7 A6 220 2 A R T 8)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)
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5 BEBRAWEE (4

by BHEWAW () (b)  Business segment analysis (Continued)
12 A 31 H#5 F & A A AR The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December and capital expenditure
TR % H AR B B A B S n for the year then ended are as follows:
T
2005 2004
HHEIY
Restated
MY Total assets
15K R I K B B R Sewage water processing and construction
of sewage plants 3,723,959 4,125,092
R BN v Tolls 398,482 443,540
BB Construction materials 46,583 51,978
ik g R Wiater recycling 238,694 —
s Unallocated 138,135 6,000
4,545,853 4,626,610
A Total liabilities
V5K BB 7K R A Sewage water processing and construction
of sewage plants 2,016,300 2,138,368
LB St Tolls 7,948 109,034
feie ot Construction materials 9,815 17,385
ik g Water recycling 155,170 —
RrH Unallocated 26,127 20,550
2,215,360 2,285,337
EAP L Capital expenditure
157K BB 75 7K B e Sewage water processing and construction
of sewage plants 298,602 246,652
L SR Tolls — 13,822
HE R Construction materials 12,375 30,398
K R Wiater recycling 4,794 —
Kok Unallocated 121,009 —
436,780 290,872
FR A A SE [T A7 1 S5 1) 7 vh No geographical segment analysis is presented since all of the Group’s
PR s R AR B0 [ SE AR R operations are in the PRC.
RH AR R B AT IR A W
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6. W3~ BN B

(a #HH

AR
A 20044F 1A 1H
EAEL (FHEER)

20044 1A 1H
K5

R
i

2004 12 A 31 H
E |
R

B (EE7)

TEER TARA
&

2005412 A 31 H

E RS

#20044E1 A1 H
M (MHES)

20041 H1H
fEdl

AR BEATRE I S
i

2004 4F 12 A 31 H

AAEBEYTRE 1 S
i

2005412 A 31 H
WV
20054 12 H 31 H

2004 12 A 31 H

Cost

At 1 January 2004
Reclassified (Note 8)

At 1 January 2004,
as restated

Additions
Disposals

At 31 December 2004
Reclassification

Other additions

LA M B EEMEE  Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6.  Property, plant and equipment

Transferred from investment

property (Note 7)

Transferred out from CIP

Disposals

At 31 December 2005

Accumulated depreciation

and amortisation

At 1 January 2004
Reclassified (Note 8)

At 1 January 2004,
as restated

Charge for the year
Disposals

At 31 December 2004

Charge for the year
Disposals

At 31 December 2005
Net book value

At 31 December 2005

At 31 December 2004

(a) Group
W3 &
PrER  BERE EE
HEY Plant,  RJtfls
- T Buildings  machinery Motor TR TR
Land use pit and and vehicles Construction it
rights Road  structures equipment and others in progress Total
(FEREG)) (R ()
(note (i) (note (c))
645,517 185,418 677,777 273,494 58,585 1,220,625 3,061,416
(645,517) — — — — —  (645,517)
— 185,418 677,777 273,494 58,585 1,220,625 2,415,899
— 16,548 9,869 19,368 240,713 286,498
— (7,284) (5,523) (2,101) — (14,908)
185,418 687,041 277,840 75,852 1,461,338 2,687,489
— 4412 (21,879) 17,467 - -
— 23,710 3,240 2,732 251,098 280,780
— 27,668 — — — 27,668
— 102124 41229 14409 (157,762) — 225
— (2,022) (5,742) (1,658) — (9,422)
185,418 842,933 294,688 108,802 1,554,674 2,986,515
56,507 35,995 276,551 132,271 33,229 — 534,553
(56,507) — — — — — (56,507)
— 35,995 276,551 132,271 33,229 — 478,046
3,453 18,241 16,777 4,635 — 43,106
— (3,403) (4,883) (1,877) — (10,163)
39,448 291,389 144,165 35,987 — 510,989
3,453 22,492 14,521 12,713 — 53,179
— (2,012) (5,468) (863) — (8,343)
42,901 311,869 153,218 47,837 — 555,825
142,517 531,064 141,470 60,965 1,554,674 2,430,690
145,970 395,652 133,675 39,865 1,461,338 2,176,500
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Cost

At 1 January 2004
Reclassified (Note 8)

At 1 January 2004,
as restated

Additions
Disposals

At 31 December 2004

Other additions

Transferred from investment

property (Note 7)

Transferred out from CIP
Transferred to a subsidiary

Disposals

At 31 December 2005

Accumulated depreciation

and amortisation

At 1 January 2004
Reclassified (Note 8)

At 1 January 2005,
as restated

Charge for the year
Disposals

At 31 December 2004

Charge for the year
Disposals

At 31 December 2005
Net book value

At 31 December 2005

At 31 December 2004

(B IR I W 7 A6 220 2 A R T 8)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

6.  Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(b)  Company
L1703
EE  BERE ERN
R Plant, it
i T Buildings  machinery Motor  TEM L
Land use W and and vehicles Construction it
rights Road  structures equipment and others in progress Total
GEREG)) (FE#(c)
(note (i) (note (c))
645,517 185,418 634,327 207,148 55,549 1,113,164 2,841,123
(645,517) — — — — —  (645,517)
— 185,418 634,327 207,148 55,549 1,113,164 2,195,606
— 1,058 4,198 14,641 206,739 226,636
— (7,284) (5,523) (2,101) — (14,908)
185,418 628,101 205,823 68,089 1,319,903 2,407,334
— — 1,544 696 178,133 180,373
— 27,668 — — — 27,668
— 8,799 — 7,367 (16,166) —
— — — — (6,591) (6,591)
— (2,022) (5.742) (1,666) — (9,430)
185,418 662,546 201,625 74,486 1,475,279 2,599,354
56,507 35,995 276,549 132,272 32,640 — 533,963
(56,507) — — — — — (56,507)
— 35,995 276,549 132,272 32,640 — 477,456
3,453 16,381 9,987 4,100 — 33,921
— (3,403) (4,883) (1,877) — (10,163)
39,448 289,527 137,376 34,863 — 501,214
3,453 16,918 9,358 5,830 — 35,559
— (2,012) (5,468) (863) — (8,343)
42,901 304,433 141,266 39,830 — 528,430
142,517 358,113 60,359 34,656 1,475,279 2,070,924
145,970 338,574 68,447 33,226 1,319,903 1,906,120
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6.  Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
(b)  Company (Continued)

Notes:

(i) All of the Group’s road, buildings and structures are located in the PRC and held under

medium term leases of 10 to 50 years.

(i) Depreciation expense of Rmb45,710,000 (2004: Rmb38,864,000) has been included

in cost of sales and Rmb7,469,000 (2004: Rmb4,236,000) in administrative costs.

(iii) Amortisation expense of Rmb14,610,000 (2004: Rmb14,488,000) has been included

in cost of sales and Rmb831,000 (2004: Rmb4,105,000) in administrative costs.

[\
(]
~

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Company Limited

Annual Report 2005



[\

LA B EEREMEE  Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6.
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(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

Yk - B B () 6.  Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
(c) TEHTH () Construction in progress
TER TN T HE Construction in progress comprise of following projects:
% 2005 4 it 2005 4
1ALH AWML 128430
TRY¥HAM FSLRA Asat 1 ABIBIM Transferred Asat 31
Budget costs  January 2005 Additions out December 2005
PR ANREEIN Sewage water processing
JEIPRER L 0 plants in Tianjin:
— B - Xian Yang Lu 1,199,720 544,536 52,574 — 597,110
— AT - Ji Zhuang Zi
B R New wing 1,054,722 634,477 39,635 — 674,112
— ot TR -Old wing 58,990 5,175 53,246 — 58,421
-1 - Bei Cang 366,327 104,845 26,979 — 131,824
WFEEL Research and development center 16,546 6,525 1,613 (932) 7,206
B &MIEA Staff dormitory 8,907 5,401 576 — 5,977
TRBETS K B B Chibi Sewage water processing plant 23,000 6,591 — (6,591) —
At Others — 12,353 3,510 (15,234) 629
A Total -Company 2728212 1,319,903 178,133 (22,757) 1475279
AUHETFI57K [ LR Tianjin Water Recycling Project 138,348 138,348 161 (138,509) —
15K EMBREE R A2 Sewage water processing plants in:
—VLEREIE - Bao Ying, Jiangsu 93,400 — 47,982 — 47,982
Hoft Others — 3,087 31,413 (3,087) 31,413
ARt — A Total -Group 2,959,960 1,461,338 257,689 (164,353) 1,554,674

o+ ks Including: Capitalised

AR SR borrowing costs
A ‘ -Company
— A (ff5E25) -Group (Note 25)

AR = KI5 K B B RTE
2006 F—Z i B IEAE T -
TE T S R T A R RE A
3% TBRIK - 3% TBRiicRe TR
EFEHE A 1218 A R TEA -

AR s R 2 T ok v A R kK
(BFEE 10)) - BEK AR € 1ETEK
SRR N5 KR o i
2006 4F-3 H 20 H » A/ ) # 54
Pk /K R A R e AR B
RSO AN %2 T BRIlicfs (1) 7o S
BH o R RIA AL R S
A A ) B R R SRR it

38,231 35,254 — 73,485
43,543 35,254 (7,536) 71,261

All the three sewage water processing plants in Tianjin were substantially
completed during the first quarter of 2006 and will be subject to inspection
by relevant authorities before commencing commercial operations. The

inspection process is expected to be completed within the next twelve months.

Under the terms of the Construction Agreement (Note 1(b)), the Company
will collect the sewage water processing fees upon commencement of the
plants” operations. On 20 March 2006, the Directors of the Company
proposed that the sewage water processing fees be payable by TSC from the
completion date of construction rather than the completion of inspection
date. This proposal is pending approval by the Company’s shareholders at

the forthcoming Extraordinary General Meeting.
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Investment property

SHAI A
Group and
Company
As at 1 January 2005 —
Transferred from prepayments made in 2004 (Note 14) 115,411
Additional payment during the year 4,000
Unsettled balance 36,589
Total purchase consideration 156,000
Less:
Transferred to property, plant and equipment (Note 6) (27,668)
Transferred to land use rights (Note 8) (32,649)
95,683
Depreciation for the year (2,272)

As at 31 December 2005 93,411

Investment property represents the apportioned cost of the portion of the Group’s
office building located in the PRC leased to third parties. Based on the advice of an
independent professional valuer, the Directors of the Company believe that the
fair market value of the investment property closely approximates its net book

value as at 31 December 2005.

The total price for the building has been agreed at Rmb156 million. The remaining
amount due of about Rmb37 million as at 31 December 2005 will be settled when

the ownership of the building is transferred to the Company.

Transfer of the ownership of the building to the Company is currently being
processed. Based on the advice from the Groups legal counsel, the Directors of the
Company believe that the title will be received in due course without additional

signiﬂcant cost to the Group, if any.
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(B IR I W 7 A6 220 2 A R T 8)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

8 LMl B 8 Land use rights

RS B AE - Mo PR ) RE SR 4R TR
FER > I MREFES T

The Group’s interests in land use rights represent prepaid operating lease payments

and their net book values are analysed as follows:

£ A

Group Company

%2004 4E 1 1 1 H - AT RS As at 1 January 2004, as previously reported — —

HOBAWE - BRE LS (ko) Reclassified from property, plant and equipment (Note 6):

A Cost 645,517 645,517
Y 3 Accumulated amortisation (56,507) (56,507)
200441 A1 H » KES As at 1 January 2004, as restated 589,010 589,010
AR Additions for the year 4,374 287
ARAE Amortisation charge for the year (14,830) (14,605)
H20044E 12 A 31 H As at 31 December 2004 578,554 574,692
EFAT A (fEE7) Transferred from investment property (Note 7) 32,649 32,649
ARAEHRA Amortisation charge for the year (15,441) (15,356)
As at 31 December 2005 595,762 591,985

Ji* 2005 F 12 A 31 H

A ] 14 A = (0 PR o 7 b B All of the Group’s land use rights are located in the PRC and held under medium

A FHE A 10 3] 50 4F o

term leases of 10 to 50 years.

9  W{EMEMEER JEXEE 9  Available-for-sale financial assets/Non-trading securities
%

A A
Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
FEm AR Unquoted equity investments:
—FEEES - Non-trading securities — 6,000 — 4,000
— At E G - Available-for-sale financial assets 6,000 — 4,000 —
6,000 6,000 4,000 4,000

BOERE I 1 7] R W A R 2 SR o TR
2005 4F- PR AN s R TR R 32 A At
WR394% - R HERHFEM A
bt B S

Investments in securities are investments in shares of fellow subsidiaries. Pursuant
to the adoption of HKAS 32 and HKAS 39, these investments in securities were

reclassified to available-for-sale financial assets in 2005.

R H RIS BRI AT R 7
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(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

10 b Ik i ) % 10  Other non-current assets
3] A
Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
| w7
Restated Restated
BAE - At cost:
ZIRBATA GEREG)) Restricted bank deposits (note (1)) 47,000 20,000 47,000 20,000
ERyEE B GERGD)) Prepayment for Fuyang project
(note (i) 40,802 — — _
Fopth Others 7,173 — — —
94,975 20,000 47,000 20,000
FERE Notes:
i) 2005412 H 31 H > Z IR AR ELEEA L (1) These deposits represent collateral deposited with a financial institution as guarantee for the
FAE IO 4 R R 2 s e R S AR 28 ) 4R Al T issuance of the Company’s convertible bonds.
PGSR IR AR
(ii) %2005 4 12 H 28 HET LAk > i 2005 4F (ii) Pursuant to the agreement dated 28 December 2005, prepayment for lease of fixed assets of
12 1 31 BT AT EIE L S T %R BT Fuyang Sewage Water Processing Plant were paid to Fuyang Construction Committee as at 31
R B R R AT B 5 /K U BRI i December 2005.
ZHIE o 231
11 BWEAFBE — A 11  Investments in subsidiaries- Company
2005 2004
LG Unlisted investments 450,380 139,500
FEmftEgHnT The movement of unlisted investment is as follows:
B
Original cost
#2004 12 131 H 31 December 2004 139,500
ARAEHE Additions during the year 310,880
742005412 A 31 H 31 December 2005 450,380

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Company Limited
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(B IR I W 7 A6 220 2 A R T 8)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

11 WEARSEE - A6 (4) 11
2005 4E 12 H 31 H 2 [HE A ml R SR
W > BrA A " A A RELA

Investments in subsidiaries- Company (Continued)

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2005, all of which are limited

liability companies, are as follows:

N

\S)

A
B
AL A Bk
Paid-up capital Investment  Fiffibidi
AR AR Interest
FATLR FEIS L FEEH HHET HlT held
Name of subsidiary Place of incorporation Principal activities (In Rmb million) (In Rmb million) (%)
EMAZAB AR e T 7K B M 100 95 95
Guizhou Capital Water Guiyang, the PRC B MBS K 2
Co., Ltd. BaiiES
Development and
construction of municipal
sewage water plants
B KA RFAE A 7 SlE PR} KA AUk 100 98 98
(1K) GERG)) Tianjin, the PRC BRI KA
Tianjin Water Recycling Production of recycled water,
Co., (“TWRC”) (note(i)) equipment development
and technical consulting
for water recycling business.
KBAISERAT A A Ll PR} RS R B B 45 26 58
(RIERM) GERGD)) Tianjin, the PRC Manufacture of new types
Tianjin Capital New Materials of construction materials
Co., Ltd. (“TCNM”) (note(ii))
2005 4L -
Established during 2005:
IREERIE KB AT IR AR TR R RE T ki 35 33 99.7
Chibi Capital Water Co., Ltd. Chibi, The PRC Pre-operating
A KB A RAH R E R 38 27 70
Baoying Capital Water Co., Ltd. Baoying, the PRC Pre-operating
BRI BARAR i Bk 45 44 99.9
Fuyang Capital Water Co., Ltd. Fuyang, the PRC Pre-operating
BB SE A AT IR v Bt 17 ki 20 18 90
Honghu Capital Water Co., Ltd. Honghu, the PRC Pre-operating
5 3K A PR o i B 120 108 90
Qujing Capital Water Co., Ltd. Quijing, the PRC Pre-operating
KEAERR (Bl ARAT i B L SES 1 100
5t 7.8 H K
Tianjin Capital Environmental Hong Kong Pre-operating 7.8 million ordinary
Protection (HK) Co., Ltd. shares of US$ 1 each
PR Notes:
(i) Ji 2005 » A2 FHE S P ) K SEIBCE A (i) During 2005, the Directors of the Company resolved to increase its investment in TWRC by
R 8,000 U o BLUHEH - dokiREMHE Rmb80 million. After this additional capital contribution, the registered capital of TWRC
K 2005 4F 8 RLHE N A5 N R L4 > AL increased to Rmb100 million and the Company’s equity interest increased to 98% from August
FIFTIGHES I /5 98% o 2005.
(i) 2005412 H29 H > AIZEEMERETE AR (ii) On 29 December 2005, TCNM made a further call for capital of Rmb8 million. As the Company
e Q00 B TT o AN/ H Il A (] JE HL B B BOK > i did not take up its share of call, the Company’s equity interest was diluted from 71% to 58%.
HAr RO LB 719% T FE 4 58% -
T A S BRI 4 AT PR W]

LR
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(B IR I O 7 A5 220 5 A R T 8)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

12 #%& 12. Inventories
L A
Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
JER R Raw materials 2,918 1,954 2,510 1,646
SR Finished goods 6,423 3,725 — —
HAAR (EFE Other consumables 2,487 121 104 121
11,828 5,800 2,614 1,767
#,A 20054 12 A 31 HIFERE > A4 H) As at 31 December 2005, no inventories were carried at net realisable value (2004:
N AEAE BRI (2004 4F < ) o nil).
T B A R o B OB B The cost of inventories recognized as expense and included in cost of sales amounted
A 4 AL R 1,400 #T (2004 to about Rmb14 million (2004: Rmb8 million).
0 NRM800 &0 -
13 B 5 Rk 13. Trade receivables
Z o RENCR AT Details of the trade receivables are as follows:
gL )
Group Company 733
2005 2004 2005 2004 ——
JENCHE KA 7] - Due from TSC for :
— 5K A (BT 1(a) - water processing services
(Note 1(a)) 45,544 133,541 45,544 133,541
— V5K E SRR A - construction of plants
(B 1(b)) (Note 1(b)) 466,185 238,484 466,185 238,484
511,729 372,025 511,729 372,025
JREMS R A T U 0 7 Due from Toll Collection Office
BlcAE (M3 1) (Note 1(c)) 16,323 19,157 16,323 19,157
JRENSC 5 B R R Due from GCAB 5,953 1,981 — —
Foth Others — 639 — —
534,005 393,802 528,052 391,182
W IR ERAY Less non-current portion:
JENCHE KA 75K Due from TSC for construction
i TR R of plants (466,185) — (466,185) —
TEER Current portion 67,820 393,802 61,867 391,182
iy 1 5 RENSCGRO 5558 H RS 5 AR A All non-current receivables are due within five years from the balance sheet date.
B o

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Company Limited
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13

B 5 WK (80

AR R385 B (5 SRR A3 30 K
J#2005 4 12 H 31 B » B 5 sk
B

1 =24
LAERLA

HR LK 2 ) 38 W A TR ek > BREK
N TN IR I o L AR AR T
ANA] (MEEE 1)) o 7£2006 44 H 17
B BEKA FBEESE R E - Pk
6 3 2005 IR AL A AE A ] Rk B
BB RAL A BB BB (R
T T R R ERR Er i)
A 2005 4 12 H 31 HIE > Bl AL
FETEM A RSB EE S A AR
W 618 f80 o RIL » ARG B K
AT B 5 RENCEKRE A A i ]

PR  RcE E A  R%E
AR 466 o ENEERME S
JREM K o

One to two years
Within one year

(B IR I W 7 A6 220 2 A R T 8)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

Trade receivables (Continued)

The majority of the Group’s sales have credit terms of 30 days. Trade receivables as

at 31 December 2005 are aged as follows:

£ | A
Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
— 13,318 — 13,318
67,820 380,484 61,867 377,864
67,820 393,802 61,867 391,182

Under the Co-operative Agreement, TSC would sell certain of its assets to the
Company upon completion and verification (Note 1(b)). On 17 April 2006, TSC
confirmed to the Company that it would pay all the construction fees owed to the
Company using the above mentioned assets within two years from end 2005 (final
agreement is subject to the Company’s shareholders” approval). As at 31 December
2005, these assets, which are used and managed by the Company, amounted to
about Rmb618 million. As such, the Directors believe that the amount due from

TSC is fully recoverable.

Following the repayment plan, the carrying value of balance amounting to Rmb466
million representing construction fee income has been reclassified to trade receivables

due after one year.

RH AR R B AT IR A W
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LA M B EEMEE  Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

0 i M Wk B TEUA Kk S 14.  Other receivables and prepayments
£ v |
Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
oAb e R Other receivables 5,872 8,544 4,600 3,944
AT GEREG)) Prepayments (note(i)) 4,016 115,411 — 115,411
9,888 123,955 4,600 119,355

LR Notes:
(i) i 2004 4F 12 H 31 H AT ERE P A A A W) (i) Prepayments as at 31 December 2004 included about Rmb115 million being the prepayment

TR — 2B R (WFE7) WA MEZN for the office building (Note 7).

R 115 T -
(i) 7% SEL A B Mg R T A1 T 2 o A i 7 (ii) The carrying values of other receivables and prepayments approximate their fair values due to

8 BOUIRI EE L U A TE - their short-term maturity.
JE W £k 15. Loan receivable
#2005 4E 12 A 31 H » &8m AR 16 Loan receivable as at 31 December 2005 of Rmb16 million (2004:nil) represents
HHETT (2004 4F ) EICEZAL entrusted loan to a third party with interest rate about 5% per annum and maturity
AETH T ERTER - FMEL on 23 March 2006. This entrusted loan has been fully recovered on maturity.
5% > £ 2006 4F 3 H 23 HEIH) - A%t
HFE R BN H 2 o
PP REASCEE AR A R B > iR T The carrying value of loan receivable approximates its fair value due to its short-
TEAEH LR A F{H - term maturity.
FEAAT S BB BR A2 K 16.  Deposit with a non-bank financial institution

2004 712 A 31 H - FERUR 7 A B
HIEWRAT S MEEN A RARE 4
JC 5 B 2005 AT E o

Deposit of Rmb400 million as at 31 December 2004 in an independent state-

owned non-banking financial institution was fully recovered during 2005.
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(B IR I W 7 A6 220 2 A R T 8)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

17 Bl& K847 8508 17. Cash and bank balances
M A
Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
B4 R RAT AT Cash on hand and in bank 800,294 941,999 544,462 859,619
T At ) e AR Restricted bank deposits included
52 BRERATAE K in other non-current assets
(B3E 10) (Note 10) (47,000) (20,000) (47,000) (20,000)
753,294 921,999 497,462 839,619
Hep: Included:
157K B B e ST Special funds for construction
Ha GEREG)) of sewage water processing
plants (note (i) 281,742 129,145 266,329 128,887
3 IRERATAE 3K — T s oy Restricted bank deposits-current 9,182 3,332 9,000 3,332
HBERERNT - He LRITEHE Cash and bank balances include the following for the purposes of the cash flow
FETHIEA - statement:
M A
Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
Bl RBAT RS BR Cash and bank balances 753,294 921,999 497,462 839,619
2 BRERATAE 3K — LB 7 Restricted bank deposits-current (9,182) (3,332) (9,000) (3,332)
744,112 918,667 488,462 836,287

PR Notes:

(i) BB R KRR B 5 SR (i) The special funds represent the unutilised balances of the special loans for the sewage water
AR AR T AR AR (BT 1b)) © processing projects (Notel (b)).

(i)  FrASATAER KB AR o ARMESN (i) Al cash and bank balances of the Group are Renminbi deposits and cash. The conversion of
27 THTRE S0, LA R A1 B 2 v B 5 0 2928 45 these Renminbi denominated balances into foreign currencies and remittance out of the PRC is
£ BB NE FF A RIBLE - subject to the rules and regulation of foreign exchange controls promulgated by the PRC

gOVEmmem.

(iii) B4 B AESRATAE B A N R 5.5 (R L (iii) Out of the cash and bank balances, approximately Rmb550 million relates to state owned
A BT IEAT B (20044F © ARWES.77M80) - banking institutions (2004: Rmb877 million).

R H RIS BRI AT R 7
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(B IR I O 7 A5 220 5 A R T 8)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

18 JBEA 18.

CHAT RSB A
RREEESARE 102 A :
A A
—BE K
AL IN e

[Shwiil<i
— e ARk
— [
(PfFE 20(d))

RS AR L T HIR
E B
— e AR

P A B R H B 45 T T 32 52 A (R 4

S
f °©

AN A IR HA 2006 43 A 20 H AtE#E
TAN AIERIROR (BiGE 33) 42 H 048
TERT R RE 7y B % o MRERZ I HE
TrEBCETTR o A R R A
A AR 2006 453 A 8 H R A TR
PSR 10 B 3.7 BERO Ay > ABALE
A 41,866,631 it o MRS B A
A T BAS v 2 R B SRR B B A4
63.05% RS T 59.91% -

AWRSBRES BOCEAR > BRT X A TR
JBHR 41,866,631 M i 4 4 T BR il 1 3 8)
FR LA o AT A7 I D 2 G 46 1 R o
PETA R o BRI 7R ST I T
HRPA B i B AT 5 > BRI IRBORTE
FBEHE B 52 AR =47 T e 28 ] 4 L i
FEA AR 10% ©

Share capital
JBe iy 4
T
No. of shares 31 December 31 December
(1000) 2005 2004
Issued and fully paid up capital
A shares with par value of Rmb1:
Non-circulating shares
-State shares 839,020 839,020 839,020
-Legal person shares 38,485 38,485 38,485
877,505 877,505 877,505
Circulating shares
-Public shares 112,495 112,495 112,495
-Conversion of convertible
bonds (Note 20) 658 658 —
113,153 113,153 112,495
H shares with par value of Rmb1:
Circulating shares outside China
-Public shares 340,000 340,000 340,000
1,330,658 1,330,658 1,330,000

All the A and H shares rank pari passu in all respects.

Subsequent to year end, on 20 March 2006, the revised stock reform plan proposed
by the Company’s controlling shareholder, TMICL (Note 33), was approved by
the Company’s shareholders of A shares. According to the revised stock reform
plan, TMICL will pay to the Company’s shareholders of A shares as registered as at
8 March 2006, 3.7 shares for each 10 shares held resulting in total payment of
41,866,631 shares. After the stock reform, TMICLs equity interest in the Company
reduced from 63.05% to 59.91%.

After the Company’s stock reform, all of the non-circulating shares were converted
into restricted circulating shares except for the 41,866,631 shares paid to the
Company’s A share holders which became non-restricted circulating shares. Shares
held by TMICL are restricted to the extent that, within 3 years after the stock

reform, TMICL can only sell a maximum of 10% of its total shares.
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A (44)

ADR

ANFEIY 2003 4F 12 A 23 H B R A 6R
11 (PR B rE A 8RAT) B — R EBIEHLIR
Wt #H(ADR) - RE#HEHFLHEREGT
H % B AL IR R E 2 sE
R o ERBUF LR 2
B AR IR AR S A A A i
Wity 28 5 A R B LT 0 WA A o
R B ILIRE & 2 R AR
A 7E B AR T R 2530 5 B L7l
i A GG TEE -

JA 2003 5 - AN FEA HAREAE
e — SR R B A AT R B R 3 T 3170
i o

18.

(B IR I W 7 A6 220 2 A R T 8)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

Share capital (Continued)
ADR:

The Company established a Sponsored Level I American Depositary Receipts
(“ADR”) Program with The Bank of New York (as the Depositary Bank). The
Securities and Exchange Commission of the United States declared that the
registration statement of the ADR Program has become effective on 23 December
2003. Each ADR under the ADR Program shall represent 20 H shares of the
Company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Trading of the
Company’s ADR, if issued, will only be made in the over-the counters markets in

the United States.

Since 2003, the Company did not and will not issue any new shares under such

ADR Program.

RH AR R B AT IR A W
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(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

19. it 19. Reserves
A B ) SGRE S R The reconciliation and movement of reserves are as follows:
Wi
o G i
B AR —Reffifi  Convertible PR ¥ 2 B
EM Capital General bonds Retained it
Group reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
2004 4F 12 H 31 A&k Balance at 1 January 2004,
J5 5 as previously reported 69,289 125,869 — 493,808 688,966
ARAEFERF - Ry 2R Profit for the year,
as previously reported — — — 323,197 323,197
R TR R T A Effect of adopting HKAS 32
GEHER 32 M in respect of convertible bonds — — — (11,286) (11,286)
AAEFIE > HE Profit for the year, as restated — — — 311,911 311,911
AR R B AW & EE Effect of adopting HKAS 32
WER 32 Hy in respect of convertible bonds
(FHEE 2.1(b)) (Note 2.1(b)) — — 100,215 — 100,215
F e - Profit appropriation:
—RBGEE RGNS - statutory common
(FERE i) reserve (note (ii)) — 32,320 — (32,320) —
— R E At - statutory provident
(FERE i) fund (note (ii)) — 16,160 — (16,160) —
71K 2003 4B Dividend relating to 2003 — — — (106,400) (106,400) 239
2004 4F 12 H 31 A&k Balance at 31 December 2004,
K5 as restated 69,289 174,349 100,215 650,839 994,692
BRI — n] A R Opening adjustment - effect of adopting
A gt Ed HKAS 39 in respect of convertible bonds
39 BN (KT 2.1(b)) (Note 2.1(b)) — — — (20,231) (20,231)
2005 4F 1 H 1 H&58R%CH 51 Balance at 1 January 2005, as restated 69,289 174,349 100,215 630,608 974,461
AAER Profit for the year — — — 177,475 177,475
FE IS - Profit appropriation:
B A YN e - statutory common
(FERE i) reserve (note (ii)) — 17,581 — (17,581) —
— R E A RS - statutory provident
(GERE i) fund (note (ii)) — 8,791 — (8,791) —
1R 2004 4F B A Dividend relating to 2004 — — — (133,000) (133,000)
ATERE R — [l ) Convertible bonds — Redeemed
(FF3E 20(d)) (Note 20(d)) — — (74,126) — (74,126)
TR — R A Convertible bonds — Converted
(FfFEE 20(d)) (Note 20(d)) 3,343 — — — 3,343
— R M 2 R A Contributed surplus of a subsidiary
(FEREGii)) (note (iii)) 2,550 — — — 2,550
2005 4F 12 J 31 H#R Balance at 31 December 2005 75,182 200,721 26,089 648,711 950,703
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(B IR I W 7 A6 220 2 A R T 8)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

19. il (4 19. Reserves (Continued)
L
e 1]
BARAR — M Convertible PRz by
A Capital General bonds Retained it
Company reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
200441 H 1 H Balance at 1 January 2004,

SifRlRE R as previously reported 69,289 125,869 — 499,365 694,523
ARAEF > LS Profit for the year, as restated — — — 312,611 312,611
AR R i Effect of adopting HKAS 32

et iER 32 2 in respect of convertible bonds

(BFE 2.1(b)) (Note 2.1(b)) — — 100,215 — 100,215
A7 - Profit appropriation:

— SREUE B AR AT S - statutory common

(GERE D) reserve (note (ii)) — 32,320 — (32,320) —

—RWOEE At - statutory provident

(FER i) fund (note (ii)) — 16,160 — (16,160) —
43R 2003 AR A Dividend relating to 2003 — — — (106,400) (106,400)
2004 4F 12 H 31 H& R Balance at 31 December 2004,

BET| as restated 69,289 174,349 100,215 657,096 1,000,949
By — n] g R Opening adjustment — effect of adopting

FRINE gt HKAS 39 in respect of convertible bonds

39 WA (HEE2.1(b)) (Note 2.1(b)) — — — (20,231) (20,231)
2005 4F 1 A 1 B &R Balance at 1 January 2005,

BET| as restated 69,289 174,349 100,215 636,865 980,718
AR Profit for the year — — — 187,067 187,067
A - Profit appropriation:

—PREUE R BAR AT S - statutory common

(ERE 1D reserve (note (ii)) — 17,581 — (17,581) —

—ROEE A i - statutory provident

(FEEE D) fund (note (ii)) — 8,791 — (8,791) —
43Uk 2004 4 1A Dividend relating to 2004 — — — (133,000) (133,000)
AR S — [l B Convertible bonds — Redeemed

(Pi5E 20(d)) (Note 20(d)) — — (74,126) — (74,126)
A R 0 — ATy Convertible bonds — Converted

(Fi5E 20(d)) (Note 20(d)) 3,343 — — —_ 3,343
2005 4F 12 J1 31 H &6k Balance at 31 December 2005 72,632 200,721 26,089 664,560 964,002

T A S BRI 4 AT PR W]
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LA M B EEMEE  Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

19. Mg (g 19. Reserves (Continued)
PR Notes:
(i) AN AR A R 851 7 I A0 7 A 1 AR Vi (1) Capital reserve fund comprises share premium arising from the issuance of shares. Amounts in
18 o AR AT P A4 LA R4 BE s FEL capital reserve fund can be utilised to offset prior years’ losses or for issuance of bonus shares.
JeAs o
(i) —f ke BB ARSMATE A - (i) The general reserve comprise the statutory common reserve and the statutory provident fund.
HRAEA A W] TR > A B Gt S According to the Company’s Articles of Association, it is required to transfer 10% and 5% to
FITEE 10% FHEEE BB ARES (HAEMLIEL 10% of the net profit of the Company as shown in the accounts prepared under PRC accounting
FEE AEERE EIEEAIY 50% A 1k) > KR regulations to the statutory common reserve (until the reserve reaches 50% of the registered
B 5% % 10% sHEE A 58 o WS HAEE capital) and statutory provident fund, respectively. The transfers to these reserves must be made
IREEHE B Z FiHE - before the distribution of dividends to shareholders.
A R E A YSE I 2005 4 B € ] The Directors of the Company have proposed to transfer 10% and 5% of the net profit of the
JERHE AR 10% M 5% 55l HR e Company for 2005 prepared under PRC accounting regulations to the statutory common reserve
ARSI 17,581,000 € (2004 4F © AR of Rmb17,581,000 (2004: Rmb32,320,000) and to the statutory provident fund of
132,320,000 70) FIEEA a8 AR Rmb8,791,000 (2004:Rmb16,160,000) respectively.
8,791,0007C (20044F = AR¥16,160,0007C) °
(iii) A T Ay — SR B 2 ) 2 SO A R (iii)  The contributed surplus represents the excess of value of fixed assets contributed by the minority 241
B AR (RO A5 R 0 3 shareholder of a subsidiary over the par value of its share of the share capital.
20 B/ 20. Borrowings
£ A
AR Group Company
note 2005 2004 2005 2004
R’ - Long-term:
SRR Bank borrowings (a) 642,500 605,000 575,000 555,000
JRE A5 535 Loans payable (© 180,000 91,719 180,000 —
TR Convertible bonds C) 362,623 1,036,124 362,623 1,036,124
1,185,123 1,732,843 1,117,623 1,591,124
B Short-term:
ST Short-term bank borrowings ~ (b) 595,000 115,000 590,000 100,000
FRHRAT SR —AE N 2R 2 Current portion of
long-term bank borrowings  (a) 62,500 50,000 60,000 50,000
JEAT £k Loans payable () 91,828 — — —
749,328 165,000 650,000 150,000
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(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

20 Bk (s

(a)

20. Borrowings (Continued)

=3 NS (@  Long-term bank borrowings
M A
Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
BT Borrowings from:
KBHRIT GER®) State Development Bank (note (i) 585,000 555,000 585,000 555,000
HEDERERAT GEREG) China Everbright Bank (note (ii)) 100,000 100,000 50,000 50,000
PR RAT (GEREGD)) China Construction Bank
(note (iii)) 20,000 — — —
705,000 655,000 635,000 605,000
B CAARE AR Less: Repayable within one year
— AR E included under current
liabilities (62,500) (50,000) (60,000) (50,000)
642,500 605,000 575,000 555,000
TE SR FL R S These borrowings mature as follows:
M A
Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
—4 AN Within one year 62,500 50,000 60,000 50,000
HAER In the second year 136,500 60,000 134,000 60,000
BEERHIER In the third to fifth year 448,500 502,000 391,000 452,000
HAFLIE After the fifth year 57,500 43,000 50,000 43,000
705,000 655,000 635,000 605,000
AR Notes:
(i) F2AG A KT BUR R R R A PR (1) This borrowing is secured by TMEB guarantee together with certain of its fee collection
DAL HEAT 055 PP 0 A M 2 AR L rights, and bears interest according to the rates for long-term loans as promulgated by
o RZHAT BRI R AR b A R 8 the People’s Bank of China. The average prevailing interest rate is ranging from 5.8%
TSI ) 1= 0 R S i s - B g 0 6.1% (2004: 5.8%) per annum.
PR 5.8%516.1% (20044 :
58%) -
(ii) FAAE B PEK 2 RS K R 2 i (ii) This borrowing is secured by the TSC's right to receive sewage water processing fees
BHEAE Sy AL B il K e A A together with TMICL guarantee and bears interest rate ranging from 5% to 5.8%
PR R RAR AR REIE IR » A2 S35% (2004: 5% to 5.8%) per annum.
$15.8% (2004 4 : 5% 5 5.8%) °
(i) AR R AR RO A PR A (i) This borrowing is secured by the Company’s guarantee and bears interest according to
PRI IR - BT A RSAT the rates for long-term loans as promulgated by the People’s Bank of China. The average
[RIEFORI 2 > BT 4RI £ 6% prevailing interest rate is 6% (2004: nil) per annum.
(2004 : 4#) -
(v) A RIS S B A AT IR A (iv)  Alllong term borrowings are from state owned banking institutions.

A o
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LA M B EEMEE  Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(B IR I O 7 A5 220 5 A R T 8)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

20 £ERk (4 20. Borrowings (Continued)
(b)  BEISRATEEK (b)  Short-term bank borrowings
Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004  Interest Rate
BT Borrowings from:
GBS SR AT Shenzhen Development Bank 100,000 — 100,000 — 5.6%
R ERAUT CITIC Industrial Bank 90,000 — 90,000 — 5%
B R A SR AT China Minsheng Bank
(FEREG)) (note(i) 300,000 — 300,000 — 5%
iR EERAUT  Shanghai Pudong Development Bank 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 5.6%
HAERTT (FE#D)) Other banks(note (ii)) 5,000 15,000 — —  5.1%-6.4%
595,000 115,000 590,000 100,000
A 20054 12 131 HIRAERE > iy The carrying amounts of all borrowings approximate their fair values as at
JA LA E S — 4 R 2 31 December 2005 either due to their short-term maturity or because they
RIS TS B R - BCH AR T 5 bear interest of prevailing market rates throughout their maturity period.
(B AR 2 F-(H
2 Notes:
(i) Hoh NRHE L e R B B A (i) Including Rmb100 million guaranteed by TMICL.
PR FR AR - 243
(i) PR T R A PR E R - (ii) Guaranteed by TMICL.
(iii) ST R AP R (iii) Of the short term borrowings, only CITIC Industrial Bank is a state owned banking
SRR A AT institution.
(c) MEAHEEEX (c) Loans payable
%M VA
Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
R=H Long-term
JEAT Due to:
—REWES (GEREG)) -TMEB (note(i)) 180,000 81,106 180,000 —
— KB MBI -Tianjin Municipal Government
(ERE(ii)) (note(iii)) — 10,613 — —
A At cost 180,000 91,719 180,000 —
J Short-term
JEAT Due to:
— REWES (GERRGD)) -TMEB (note(ii)) 81,215 — — —
— KEWBN (iEfEGi)  -Tianjin Municipal Government
(note(iii)) 10,613 — — —
91,828 — — —
JREASH LA AP (FLAE AR AR T The fair values of the loans payable are approximate to the book values.
ﬁ o
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20 Bk (s
REAH Sk (%)

(c)

it

(@)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

20054 KT BUR IS 2 AR L8
EIC R 15K R MR R U o A
B4 2005 RS 124 AT - £
ORI 6.4E 11 5% » 1855 7 4R AIR
R AR 0.3% ©

TERER HE BRI AR Y A e
AR 8,100 BT (2004 4+ AR
8,100 B57C) [ R B kI T SR
(iii) FIF %

AR 1,100 878 (2004 4+ AR
1,100 B70) k2 sl R A e
IO PR > A AR S K R
& o ERARHE » REERH WA
7 AT KRS AR B O
TR AT

Db A FERR Gl i) R 8 s A A R
8,100 A ICH AR 1,100 #7T B3
R M A B RO B RS o R
FBR MR B RS
WE AT -

(B IR I W 7 A6 220 2 A R T 8)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

20. Borrowings (Continued)

(¢  Loans payable: (Continued)

Notes:

(i) The Rmb180 million from TMEB taken during 2005 is specifically for construction
of sewage water processing plants. The loan is repayable in equal instalments over
twelve years from 2005. The loan bears interest at 5% per annum for the first six years.
From the seventh year to maturity, the interest will be based on the one-year deposit

plus 0.3% premium.

(i1) Of the total amount loaned by TMEB, Rmb81 million (2004: 81 million) is specifically

for the same purpose and under same terms as loan stated in note (iii) below.

(iii) The Rmb11 million (2004: Rmb11 million) loaned by a Tianjin Municipal Government
body was for the construction of the Group’s water recycling plant. The loan is interest
free and the method and date of repayment which is supposed to be determined after

the completion of the said plant has yet to be finalised.

(iv) The repayment scheme for the Rmb81 million and Rmb11 million loans mentioned
in (ii) and (iii) above is still being negotiated. As the terms are uncertain, these loans

have been classified as current liabilities.

R H RIS BRI AT R 7
LR




(B IR I O 7 A5 220 5 A R T 8)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

20
(d)  FERT AT gt

IR IR — AR

R (TR

AN 200447 H 1 HA T
1200 #5R A AT A FE S -
HaRmEE AR 100T - $EEHEgT
AR RS SRR 1218
TG o FNBREEATE A AN R 3,500
HouE - BT TS 2 e
RBARE 116550 - s%fEF 0
2004 47 H 19 HAF L5
T Eizc 5 o

o E/‘%

R4 T A A ) 5 0 A
> A FIE 2005 4F 8 H I
] T 8,239,020 3 Al 46 /0
AR o UL > A )
i hHEZE 30 0 AR
7,400 FTCH I ] o A HE ]
B AW 1,650 &

j‘DO
o MR

LA 2005 12 H 31 H -
ZEt A AR 400 B ook
T AR - W AR £
AR 6.08 TCHEE - #K
o AN AT AR
B 43 Fil 3 A R B 658,000
JOR R 3,343,000 T ©

LA M B EEMEE  Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

20. Borrowings (Continued)

(d)  Convertible bonds payable

AvFIEM
Group and Company
2005 2004
Liability component of convertible bonds 362,623 1,036,124
No. of units (1,000) 3,721 12,000

On 1 July 2004, the Company issued 12 million “A share” convertible bonds
certificates at face value of Rmb100 each (“Bonds”), which was listed on
Shanghai Stock Exchange on 19 July 2004. The aggregate amount of the
Bonds issued was Rmb1,200 million. The net cash received from issuance
of bonds is about Rmb1,165 million after deducting the issuance expenses

of about Rmb35 million.

. Redemption during the year:

In accordance with the term of the bonds, 8,239,020 units were
redeemed during August 2005. Accordingly, the equity component
of the bonds redeemed of Rmb74 million has been reversed. The

premium for the redemption is Rmb16.5 million.

. Conversion during the year:

During 2005, Bonds with aggregate value of Rmb4 million were
converted into the Company’s A share at Rmb6.08 per share. As a
result of conversion, the Company’s share capital and capital reserve

were increased by Rmb658,000 and Rmb3,343,000 respectively.
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20 Bk (s
JEAT PR AR (4)

(d)

RS
BITSE

AR A R A A A
R 2P IRAE$EAT AR o

FIR I Bk 2 v A
FAMIY 2 B > IR
HHRRE R 2 I 2 R
F 2 TG IRE A i
LIRS (EFR » R
BRBLIE I IR By i a2 40 2 18
{H - A 2 FEE R
5.6% 2 3 R A L BBk
AtE (HEE2.D) -

(] B A I

HEHA 2005 4F 12 A 31 Hi%
ERFREGE 2 RIRAR
R (E (A 25 N R 3.63
fE&e (2004 © AR#10.36f
) o R ZEBERES
5.6% e

(B IR I W 7 A6 220 2 A R T 8)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

20. Borrowings (Continued)

(d)

Convertible bonds payable (Continued)

Recognition and mbsequmt measurement:
At inception:

The classification of the liability component and the equity conversion

component were determined at issuance of the bonds.

The value of the liability component, included in long-term
borrowings, was carried at amortised cost and calculated using a
market interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible bond. The
residual amount, representing the value of the equity conversion
component, is included in shareholders’ equity in other reserves net
of deferred income taxes. Interest expense on the bonds is calculated
using the effective interest method by applying the effective interest

rate of 5.6% to the liability component (Note 2.1).

Upon redemption and conversion:

The value of the remaining liability component of the bonds as at 31
December 2005 is estimated at about Rmb363 million using the

effective interest rate of 5.6% (2004: Rmb1,036 million).

RH AR R B AT IR A W
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(B IR I O 7 A5 220 5 A R T 8)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

20 $|FEK ()
AT AR S ()

(d

FITEH

AR S 2 B TR R
Jr A ST - Y B -
£ 20094F-6 7 30 H » AN
AT AR S I ]
W [ RS
AT Ry > RICKHESH 2 vl
BHRETE RS —KFA
WAL - 200548 A > 1]
LA 5 VO I A B 1
TR AR 2,300 #6
E—WHRAE ESRE - R
20054F » ARBTG5t
WERER - RS 2 8817 %
A&/ ARET50 &t
(2004 4%+ AR% 3,100 B
JC) BAPEAHE AR ELAEIY o

LA M B EEMEE  Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

20. Borrowings (Continued)

(d)  Convertible bonds payable: (Continued)

. Issuance expense:

The issuance expense of the convertible bonds is being amortised
over the duration of the bonds. Any unamortized amount would be
charged to income statement in the year when the bonds are
redeemed, converted or purchased and cancelled before the maturity
date on 30 June 2009. In August 2005, upon redemption of a certain
portion of these bonds, the related issuance expense that was written
off is about Rmb23million. In 2005, the unamortized issuance
expense of about Rmb7.5 million was offset with convertible bonds

payable upon the adoption of new HKAS (2004: Rmb31 million).
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20 Bk (s
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(B IR I W 7 A6 220 2 A R T 8)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

20. Borrowings (Continued)

(d)  Convertible bonds payable: (Continued)

. Principal terms of bonds:

)

The Bonds, guaranteed by the Construction Bank of China,
Tianjin Branch (“the guarantor”) and counter-guaranteed by
TMICL, the Company’s controlling sharcholder, to the
guarantor, are convertible into the Company’s A share at any
time on and after 1 July 2005 and prior to 30 June 2009. The
initial conversion price of the Bonds was set as Rmb7.7 per
share and the Company is entitled to revise the conversion
price during the conversion period based on the market price
of the Company’s shares. Unless previously redeemed,
converted or purchased and cancelled, the Bonds will be
redeemed within 5 days after maturity date on 30 June 2009
at 100% of the principal amount and accrued interest in the
fifth year plus an interest compensation for the difference
between the five times of bond interest of the fifth year and

actual total interest paid in the 5 years.

RH AR R B AT IR A W
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(B IR I O 7 A5 220 5 A R T 8)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

20 $|FEK ()

d AR (80
o EEGL ()
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ANRETZERZ
SEHEN L 1.7% %
2.7% - B AT B
KR N2 R
S AR B FAR
5B K 58 AR AT
P2 E R KT
PATA%E o #45 2005 4F
1231 HIEFRE » A
NAEHR T A FLE
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LA M B EEMEE  Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

20. Borrowings (Continued)

(d)  Convertible bonds payable: (Continued)

. Principal terms of bonds: (Continued)

(i)

(Continued)

These Bonds bear interest ranging from 1.7% to 2.7%. The
actual interest payable to the bond holders will be based on
the carrying bond interest rate and adjusted according to the
five-year fixed deposit rate published by the State. For the
year ended 31 December 2005, the Company accrued the
related bonds interest of about Rmb19 million (2004: Rmb14

million).

The Company has the option to redeem the bonds one year
after its issuance through its maturity in whole or in part at
102% of par value plus current year’s interest, provided that
during conversion period, the closing prices of the A shares
for any 20 days in 30 consecutive trading days are not more

than 130% of the conversion price.
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20 Bk (s
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Borrowings (Continued)

(B IR I W 7 A6 220 2 A R T 8)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

(d)  Convertible bonds payable: (Continued)

. Principal terms of bonds (Continued)

(1) (Continued)

The Bonds holder has the option to resell the bond to the Company

in the conversion period in whole or in part according to their

maturity period, provided that during the conversion period, the

closing prices of the A shares for any 20 days in 30 consecutive trading

days are less than 70% of the conversion price.

(i)  Pursuant to the terms of the Bonds, the conversion price has been

revised downwards from the initial Rmb7.7 to Rmb6.08 as at 31

December 2005.

() Undrawn borrowing facilities

As at 31 December 2005 undrawn facilities of Rmb80 million have been

arranged to help finance the proposed expansion of the Group’s sewage

water processing business (2004: Rmb230 million).
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(B IR I O 7 A5 220 5 A R T 8)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

21

22

B HE Ji 143 8L 21.
TR B AT R

=)

PRANEVE R IER 39 A9 39 9 1
T AR AR

HERE S (B ABRBLIE

FAR

R I i 15 T R 28 B v G R B
(FfF3E 20(d)) -

Deferred income tax

The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows:

HHAMA T

Group and Company

2005 2004
Beginning of the year 43,799 —
Opening adjustment for the adoption of HKAS 39 (9,964) —
Recognized in the income statement (8,303) (5,560)
Tax (credited)/charged to equity (19,841) 49,359
End of the year 5,691 43,799

The deferred income tax relates to the convertible bonds (Note 20(d)).

WA WS ok B 3 b W A5 2% 22. Trade and other payables
£ | gl
Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
EA 3 R A Construction costs payable 70,547 97,720 70,547 97,720
REAT IS 12 ~ Hs 1 s Payable for purchase of property,
plant and equipment 50,512 55,000 36,589 — 251
FEK Advances from TSC 38,594 52,700 27,385 52,700 =
2 A Accrued expenses 7,266 7,882 6,050 7,882
= A Trade payables 8,414 8,408 2,774 2,153
ot Others 28,440 33,799 25,322 32,607
203,773 255,509 168,667 193,062

WY R IR 2 > DL AR
A A 3 B S i (LA 2 AR ME (20
I o

The carrying value of trade and other payables approximate to their fair value due

to their short-term maturities.
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(B IR I W 7 A6 220 2 A R T 8)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

23 PR ABAEH 23.
BIAE B 15 A > B B A A

Expense by nature

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and marketing costs and administrative

FTECE AR & T costs are analyzed as follows:
BE 12 4 31 HILARE
Year ended 31 December

2005 2004
PrEE REEEER (ke & 8) Depreciation and amortisation expenses (Notes 6 and 8) 70,892 57,936
& AR FIBA S (BT 24) Staff costs (Note 24) 41,678 34,416
LD Utility 33,742 30,060
B L REE R Repair and maintenance expenses 22,111 15,212
0 FET O S e T A Raw materials and consumables used 13,666 8,283
RO Management fee to Toll Collection Office 7,262 7,120
1% BT 4 Auditors’ remuneration 3,380 3,170
T BRI E e 4 Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 706 4,645
b e 2 AR VAT B S Operating lease rentals for land and buildings — 1,381
JiAth Others 49,972 39,960
243,409 202,183

24 @ HAA) B 5 24,

Employee benefit expense

(@) EEARFIBH LTI (@) The analysis of employee benefit expense is as follows:
BRE 12 4 31 HIkAEEE
Year ended 31 December
2005 2004
T M Wages and salaries 30,300 25,154
AL R A Social security costs 4,264 2,397
RIRE A — R G Pension costs — defined contribution plans 1,915 3,198
Fobg Fl Other benefits 5,199 3,667
41,678 34,416
(b)  EH N m T (b)  Directors and senior management’s emoluments
AR ERHM T - The aggregate amounts of emoluments payable to the Directors of the
Company during the year are as follows:
BRE 12 4 31 HIkAEEE
Year ended 31 December
2005 2004
B4 Fees 624 636
TR T & A Salaries and other emoluments 1,188 1,238
BERES Contribution to retirement benefit scheme 21 —
1,833 1,874

AR SO ST A T
M R 624,000 7T (2004 4F A
R# 636,000 0) CEIETELL L BR
#rp o

Emoluments paid to independent non-executive directors amounted to
Rmb624,000 during the year have been included in the above balance (2004:
Rmb636,000).

R H RIS BRI AT R 7
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(B IR I O 7 A5 220 5 A R T 8)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

24 RHEBMMHIE (1) 24.  Employee benefit expense (Continued)
(b) FHLEFERBHH (4 (b)  Directors and senior management’s emoluments (Continued)
FERNEMWR Details of emoluments of individual directors and supervisors are set out as
below:
BE 12 9 31 HIkAREE
Year ended 31 December
2005 2004
WS Executive Directors:
HHE Ma Baiyu 150 150
i R0 Gu Qifeng 401 409
HIEH Tan Zhaofu 100 100
ER(E Wang Zhanying 100 100
% il An Pindong 100 100
DEHR Fu Yana 358 379
TS Non-executive Directors:
] Ko Po Ming 208 212
EER Gao Zongze 208 212
TR Wang Xiangfei 208 212
1,833 1,874
AT PR AT 8 S5 1 S A i None of the Directors of the Company received emoluments in excess of
1,000,000 JG ° HK$1,000,000 during the year. 253
(ORERAE 7N () Five highest paid individuals
AR i ASE B fp = MY L At The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group for
BLRE AL (20044F © —f7) #5 - the year include 2 (2004: 2) Directors of the Company whose emoluments
A AE b SCRERI ST R R are reflected in the analysis presented above. The emoluments payable to
B o AR ST T HAR =0 (2004 the remaining 3 (2004: 3) individuals during the year are as follows:

o =) NHEBFTMWT

BE 12 4 31 HILAEE
Year ended 31 December

2005 2004

BT & KA 4 Salaries and other emoluments 732 750
BERES Contribution to retirement benefit scheme 32 28
764 778

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Company Limited

Annual Report 2005




LA B EEREMEE  Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(B IR I W 7 A6 220 2 A R T 8)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

[\

W

25 RE AR 25. Finance costs
& 12 4 31 HIEAEE
Year ended 31 December
2005 2004
KT
Restated
FEZR Interest expense on:
—SRAT R - bank borrowings 60,723 38,526
— JHA AR N R SR Y n] A - convertible bonds wholly repayable within five years
(Pi5E 20(d)) (Note 20(d)) 49,019 34,346
W EAEFE (BHEE 6(c)) Less: Capitalised interest (Note 6(c)) (35,254) (24,107)
74,488 48,765
ARG (3 200d) Redemption premium on convertible bonds
(Note 20(d)) 16,478 —
SUAbAT B M B A Other ancillary borrowing costs 3,250 1,750
94,216 50,515

26

FEE R EA LR

Pi 43 B B

FR A A 42 7 A &5 2005 4F 12 A 31 H IE
A A T A s [ SR B R
(20044F : #8) - B DAAAE B SR i
Bl o r B2 ) ok U BRAR AR BE A &
TR 28 R 1 B 33% MIBERFTEE (2004
F133%) o

Pt B AT
R B TR R
IEAEFTIRRE (BFRE21)

26.

Interest rate per annum at which finance costs
were capitalised

5.8%-6.1%

2.3%-6.1%

Income tax expense
No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the Group has no assessable profit
in Hong Kong (2004: Nil). PRC income tax has been charged at 33% on the
assessable profits of the Group (2004: 33%).
RE 12 7 31 HILAFE
Year ended 31 December
2005 2004
Sl
Restated
Tax charge comprises:
Current PRC income tax 92,648 160,416
Deferred income tax (Note 21) (8,303) (5,560)
84,345 154,856
RH AR R B AT IR A W
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(B IR I O 7 A5 220 5 A R T 8)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

26 WifaBLEM (4 26. Income tax expense (Continued)
A B R BE i A R RO BLIE - BLBR T AR The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the theoretical
o A RV B RS- Y % % 1 A amount that would arise using the PRC income tax rate and the difference is set
Z PP T out as follows:
HBE 12 4 31 HIRARE
Year ended 31 December
2005 2004
IR At 2R Profit before taxation 259,981 465,965
1 33% ML RGIEBIE (2004 4F © 33%) Calculated at a tax rate of 33% (2004: 33%) 85,794 153,768
Rardnfiz 2 Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes — 1,088
AR 2 A Income not subject to tax (6,642) —
RGN 8 N A 4R Unutilised tax losses of subsidiaries 5,193 —
84,345 154,856

27 AAGRERIEA AJEA BN 27. Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company

FEAARAE AN TR H 2 AN 7R R The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for the year is dealt with

HNERBAE I NREE1.87 T in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of approximately Rmb187

(2004 4+ AR 3.134870) million (2004: Rmb313 million).

255

28 A 28.  Earnings per share

A Basic:

5 BT R AR 8 A 2000 T B sk A 28 R The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit attributable to

W1 774850 (20044F © ANR¥3.12487T) shareholders of Rmb177 million (2004: Rmb312 million) and 1,331 million shares

DI ERMIRE BT 13.3 [k ErE in issue during the year (2004: 1,330 million shares).

(2004 4F : 1331810 -

BWE 12 4 31 HILAEE
Year ended 31 December

2005 2004

]l

Restated

AN AV RE RS A ARG 2R Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company 177,475 311,911
T T IR A IR Y B (| T Weighted average number of ordinary shares

in issue (million) 1,331 1,330

REREAEAZA (R AR¥T) Basic earnings per share (Rmb per share) 0.13 0.23
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2005 4F B [ 2004 4F B S 0 B 43 Tl 2
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28.

29.

(B IR I W 7 A6 220 2 A R T 8)

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

Earnings per share (Continued)

Diluted:

Diluted earnings per share is calculated adjusting the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares. The Company has one category of dilutive potential ordinary shares:
convertible debt. The convertible debt is assumed to have been converted into
ordinary shares and the net profit is adjusted to eliminate the interest expense less

the tax effect.

#E 12 11 31 HIEAEE
Year ended 31 December
2005 2004
K5
Restated
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company 177,475 311,911
Interest expense on convertible debt, net of tax 6,091 9,407
Profit used to determine diluted earnings per share 183,566 321,318
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
(thousands) 1,330,658 1,330,000
Adjustments for — assumed conversion
of convertible debt (thousands) 61,858 155,844
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for diluted earnings per share (thousands) 1,392,516 1,485,844
Diluted earnings per share (Rmb per share) 0.13 0.22

Dividend

During the year dividend amounting to Rmb133,000,000 (Rmb0. 1 per share) were
paid (2004: Rmb106,400,000 (Rmb0.08 per share) ). A dividend in respect of
2005 of Rmb0.04 per share, amounting to a total dividend of Rmb53,226,320 is
to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. These financial

statements do not reflect this dividend payable.

RH AR R B AT IR A W

LR
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(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

30 HZABEeREE 30. Consolidated cash flow statement
A J5 P B R A O B IR R Reconciliation of profit for the year to cash generated from operations
2005 2004
FEl
Restated
R Profit for the year 175,636 311,109
W Adjustments for:
— B “Tax 101,086 154,856
— T S -Depreciation and amortisation 70,892 57,936
— WP B B R -Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
(R F30) (see below) 706 4,645
—FEA -Interest income (8,563) (6,466)
—FIE 2 — 5 -Interest expense-net 93,934 45,305
BEE S AT A Operating profit before working capital changes 433,691 567,385
&R M Increase in inventories (6,028) (3,677)
B 5 R R T R 1 Increase in trade receivables, other receivables
and prepayments (183,829) (286,896)
JREASH I F A A SR ) Bk Decrease in trade and other payables (37,265) (25,674)
BIEEENE S Cash generated from operations 206,569 251,138
THABHSREERN - HEYE - K In the consolidated cash flow statement, proceeds from sale of property, plant and
VEL PR NIt equipment comprise:
257
2005 2004
HRTERE (FH5E 6) Net book amount (Note 6) 1,079 4,745
Y ~ s M A A et Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (706) (4,645)
Y ~ BRSO 1 TS Proceeds from sale of property,
plant and equipment 373 100
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(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

31 AVEFM 31. Commitments
BRI Capital commitments
JR A B A B K i B R R ) A S Capital expenditure at the balance sheet date in respect of several sewage plant
SR EAS N A construction projects and capital contribution is as follows:
e Group
CREAR B bR
Contracted but not provided for Authorised but not contracted for
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
BRELANN BERANA KEL2AJMA HEDRA3A
AR 1RAFBE AR 1RAFE
2005 2004 2005 2004
ARWHEL  ARWAET  ARBEEL  ARWOET
Rmb’ million Rmb’ million Rmb’ million Rmb’ million
VR (i)
Note(i)
15K R PR ER Sewage water processing plants in:
— Ji P - Xian Yang Lu 56 70 18 Note(i) 589
—#E T - Ji Zhuang Zi 5 19 #E B Note(i) 401
—JtE - Bei Cang 18 98 #E#% Note(i) 164
— R - Chi Bi — 9 — 5
— My -Qu Jing 290 — — —
— BB (K& 10) - Fu Yang (Note 10) 61 — — —
—HuM - Hang Zhou — — 180 —
ok Zhong Shui — — — 5
A Office building — 39 — 20
KHEAISEBR Hong Kong subsidiary
(i) ARAF capital contribution 62 — — —
Fodts Others — — — 26
492 235 180 1,210

Note:

(0] A BSR4 ) R B Y (i)

i QT BR 5 S (i) ik o

RH AR R B AT IR A W

LR

The intention to acquire the remaining assets belonging to TSC is described in Note 5(i).
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32

I B8 32 5

(/NG S /N e b T HE SO O
SR AR T o MRIRA IS Gt e 24
AT BT DR 2 A > AL E T
v ) L A5 AT R A A 2 R S
R BB E TR 5 2 AT A3 o HRAR
% BIAT A3 2 g ik NSRS BB
TREARE M 1 1 % S R e 5 D ) = g )
BT OO o SRTIE BERE AR P A R
SR 2 BT SR S o # 2 RE R e O)
AR -

BR T FEAR R B B AR 51 7R 2 B W
Jr GO o RO T AL R BT A
) SRRy TE A 1B 2 iR I T
SERMERT 2 TR BRI 7 2 5 AR 4 B
BT S8 o L 2 AR B

(a)  BURHEMBUBCE A AR ) RO
3%

TABEK 2 RIS 2 5 K B
15K PR B

TR A 5 M e S 5 7K T A

TR A A E T 2 T

32.

Related party transactions

The majority of the business activities of the Company and its subsidiaries are
conducted with state-owned enterprises. For the purpose of the related party
transactions disclosure in accordance with HKAS 24, the Company and its
subsidiaries have established procedures to determine, to the extent possible, the
identification of the ownership structures which may change over time as a result
of transfers and privatization programs. Nevertheless, management believes that

all material related party balances and transactions have been adequately disclosed.

In addition to the related party information shown elsewhere in the financial
statements, the following is a summary of significant related party transactions
entered into in the ordinary course of the business between the Company and its
subsidiaries and their related parties during the year and balances arising from

related party transactions at the end of the year.

(@  Transactions with TMICL and its supervisory entities:

RE 12 31 HILEE
Year ended 31 December
2005 2004
AREH ST
In Rmb’ million

Revenue earned from TSC for sewage water
processing services and construction of
sewage plant 506 662

Amount payable for sewage water
processing plants construction costs
to other related contractors — 3

Operating lease rental payable to TMICL

(% 2004 AR 1L in respect of office premises
(ceased during 2004) — 1
R B A PR
JTREAT ARG 5 Convertible bonds held by TMICL 209 209

BLPRK A FIAE R BRI S 7E B 0
TR

The year ended balance with TSC is included under trade receivables.
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32 BWWRY (&)
(b) HHABBR GRS (b)

32. Related party transactions (continued)

Transactions with other state-owned enterprises:

E 12 7 31 HILARE
Year ended 31 December

2005 2004
NG R o
In Rmb’ million

PRIEAIE ~ A0 S sty Purchase of property, plant and equipment 14 13
PR RS Purchase of construction materials 10 5
PRI IEURE A6 S B Purchase of raw materials and accessories 19 14
AT TR Payment for plants construction 113 149
A K Drawdown of short-term loan 40 —
HERRIEK Drawdown of long-term loan 80 —
FLE S Interest expenses 54 44

TEAMRH A > BUH AR A 355

The year ended balances with other state-owned enterprises are included in

ARG UT IR ¢ the financial statements as follows:
31 December 31 December
2005 2004
ARWE#ELT  ARFE#ET
In Rmb’ million  In Rmb’ million
bt 673 Current assets
TEROR FESRAT G BB 7K Deposit with a non-bank financial
institution — 400
M UEER Current liabilities
JREA SR S H b R A Wi Trade and other payables 166 151
(© B ERE R () Key management compensation
T RS 8 AR Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 1,675 2,250
JofbR AR A Other long-term benefits 74 75
1,749 2,325

33 I PE A
#% 2005 4 12 A 31 H 1k > AN #E S
R BT B AT R R B AR A w1 B
BRI -

34 HRWMBEBFESE
ARG BRI 2006 4 4 A 20 B £
AN FER G, -

33. Ultimate holding company

As at 31 December 2005, the Directors of the Company regard Tianjin Municipal

Investment Company Limited (“I'MICL”) as the ultimate holding company.

34. Approval of consolidated financial statements

The accounts were approved by the Directors of the Company on 20 April 2006.

R H RIS BRI AT R 7
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